ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 25, 2010
3:13 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representative Tamm e W/ son, Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 309

“"An Act prohibiting health care insurers that provide dental
care coverage from setting a mninum age for receiving dental
care coverage, allowing those insurers to set a maxi num age for
receiving dental care coverage as a dependent, and prohibiting
those insurers from setting fees that a dentist may charge for
dental services not covered under the insurer's policy."

- MOVED CSHB 309(HSS) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO 361
"An  Act requiring 911 dispatchers to be trained in
cardi opul monary resuscitation; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 392
"An Act establishing a |oan repaynent program and enploynment
incentive program for certain health care professionals enployed
in the state; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 392( HSS) QUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 25, 2010



BILL: HB 309
SHORT TITLE: DENTAL CARE | NSURANCE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOVAS

01/19/10 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H HSS, FIN

02/ 11/ 10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 11/ 10 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 23/ 10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 23/ 10 (H Heard & Held

02/ 23/ 10 (H M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 09/ 10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
03/09/10 (H <Bi ||l Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 25/ 10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 361
SHORT TI TLE: CPR TRAI NI NG FOR 911 DI SPATCHERS
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) FAI RCLOUGH

02/ 23/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 23/ 10 (H CRA, HSS

03/ 09/ 10 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 09/ 10 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 09/ 10 (H M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 10/ 10 (H) CRA RPT 5NR

03/ 10/ 10 (H NR.  GARDNER, KELLER, HARRIS, MJINQZ,
HERRON

03/ 10/ 10 (H) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER HSS

03/ 25/ 10 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HB 392
SHORT TITLE: | NCENTI VES FOR CERTAI N MEDI CAL PROVI DERS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

02/ 23/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 23/ 10 (H) HSS, FIN

03/ 18/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

03/ 18/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 18/ 10 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 23/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

03/ 23/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 23/ 10 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 25/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

CECI LE ELLI OTT, Staff

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 25, 2010



to Representative Bill Thomas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced the proposed Conmittee
Substitute (CS) for HB 309, Version C, for the prime sponsor of
the bill, Representative Thonas.

DAVI D LOGAN, Denti st

Al aska Dental Society

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about HB
309.

REED STOOPS, Lobbyi st

Aet na

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion on HB
3009.

DENNI S BAI LEY, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi sl ati ve Legal and Research Services

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
309.

CHRI S HENRY, Treasurer

Al aska Dental Society

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered to answer questions during
di scussi on of HB 3009.

JIM TOALE, Executive Director

Al aska Dental Society

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered to answer questions during
di scussi on of HB 3009.

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, St aff

to Representative Anna Faircl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 361 for the prine sponsor,
Represent ati ve Anna Fai rcl ough.

M CHAEL O HARE, Deputy Director

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 25, 2010



Di vi sion of Homel and Security/ Energency Managenent
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA)

Ft. R chardson, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 361.

SUE STANCLI FF, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during
di scussi on of HB 361.

RCDNEY DI AL, Li eut enant

Al aska State Troopers

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
361.

NIl KOOSH CARLO, St af f

to Representative Bob Herron

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced the CS for HB 392 for the prine
sponsor, Representative Bob Herron.

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on (ACPE)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion on HB 392.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:13: 35 PM

CO- CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3:13 p. m
Representatives Keller, Herron, Seaton, Lynn, and T. WIson were
present at the call to order. Representative Holnes arrived as
the neeting was in progress. Representative C ssna was excused.

HB 309- DENTAL CARE | NSURANCE

3:13: 52 PM

CO- CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 309, "An Act prohibiting health care insurers

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 25, 2010



that provide dental care coverage from setting a mninum age for
receiving dental care coverage, allowing those insurers to set a
maxi mum age for receiving dental care coverage as a dependent,
and prohibiting those insurers from setting fees that a denti st
may charge for dental services not covered under the insurer's
policy." [In front of the commttee was the proposed Conmttee
Substitute (CS) for HB 309, 26-LS1315\C, Bailey, 3/24/10.]

3:14: 38 PM

CECI LE ELLIOIT, Staff to Representative Bill Thomas, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that Version C resulted as a
conprom se between the dental comrunity, the insurance industry,
and the small business community. She pointed out that the
section regarding age limt had been renoved, as it was covered
el sewhere in statute; and the second section, prohibiting fee
cappi ng, was anended to reflect the conprom se. She expl ai ned
that dentists would now be offered the opportunity to sign
contracts for covered and, if desired, non-covered services.

3:16: 25 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON noved to adopt the proposed Conmittee Substitute
(CS) for HB 309, 26-LS1315\C, Bailey, 3/24/10, as the working
draft. There being no objection, Version C was before the
conmittee.

3:16: 54 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if this affected self insured
pol i ci es.

3:17:11 PM
MS. ELLIOIT said that it did not.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if this would only affect snall
busi nesses with policies simlar to Blue Cross/ Blue Shield.

MS. ELLIOIT explained that HB 309 referenced preferred provider
contracts. In response to Representative T. WIson, she
explained that these were contracts negotiated between the
i nsurance conpany and the dentist on a fee schedul e.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if there was a mechanism for the
self insured to abide by the same rul es.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 25, 2010



3:18: 33 PM

DAVI D LOGAN, Dentist, Al aska Dental Society, explained that the
two broad categories of insurance were the traditional indemity
pl ans, where the provider billed the insurance conpany and the
managed plans, which included Preferred Provider O ganization
(PPO) plans. He explained that with PPGCs, the insurance conpany
had contracted with dentists to provide services at a set fee
schedul e. In response to Representative T. WIson, he pointed
out that federal l|egislation regulated the Enployee Retirenent
| nconme Security Act of 1974 (ERI SA) pl ans.

3:20:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how HB 309 would ensure that the
i nsurance conpany notified the insured about the costs charged
by each provider.

M5. ELLIOTT offered her belief that the insurance conpany would
provide that information to the consumer, but she did not know
how it was provided. She pointed out that the insurance
conpani es had provided the | anguage for the CS

3:.22:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed to the perm ssive | anguage on page
2, line 15, and noted that this was a change from prior policy
whi ch had required notification to the insured.

CO CHAI R KELLER re opened public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the new uncapped plan had any
requirenent for the dentist to notify the PPO patient that sone
fees were no | onger capped.

M5. ELLIOIT deferred the question to Dr. David Logan.

3:25: 32 PM

DR. LOGAN said that the conmittee substitute did not stipulate
t his, and there was not any statutory requirenent for
notification to the insured. He opined that nost nedical

of fices attenpted to inform patients about the fee structure for
servi ces.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 25, 2010



CO CHAIR KELLER directed attention to page 2, lines 6 and 10,
and asked for «clarification of the phrase "take an action
agai nst the dentist."

DR. LOGAN explained the intent to be that if a dentist signed a
contract for either covered services, or covered and non-covered
services, there would not be a differential in the fee schedul e
that would apply to the insured based on the contract. He
reported that there was also language in Version C that the
insurers may differentiate between the types of provider
contract, but not fail to notify the insured that the denti st
has signed a contract.

3:27:41 PM

REED STOOPS, Lobbyist, Aetna, in response to Representative T.
Wlson, said that Linda Hall could best respond to questions
about ERI SA. He said that a self insured plan would be exenpt
from mandated coverage, and he offered the mninum age
requi renent as an exanpl e of mandated cover age.

3:29:21 PM

MR. STOOPS, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that the
enpl oyee handbook explains the benefits. Currently, there was
no obligation from the insurer for prior notice. He said that

Version C dictated a <change of the ~current notification
pr ocedure.

3:31: 27 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked about the rate change for snall
busi ness.

3:31:49 PM

MR. STOOPS said that the cost of insurance would not change, but
that the cost to the consumer for non-covered service could
change. He suggested asking the dentists if charges would
i ncrease.

3:32: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if non-covered services mght be
offered at a | ower cost than through the insurance fee schedul e.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 25, 2010



MR. STOOPS replied that a dentist could charge |ess, but he
opined those costs to be greater, or HB 309 would not be
necessary.

3:33:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to Version C, page 2,
l[ine 15, and asked if the insurance providers would object to a
change from "may authorize the insurer to provide information to
the insured® to "shall notify the insured.” He pointed out that
this notification would include both the list of all covered
fees, and that there was no fee cap for the uncovered services
fromthe provider.

3:34:18 PM
MR, STOOPS replied that he would research this.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that these were forward contracts,
and the providers would be listed in the policy handbook. He
asked when the provider list would be updat ed.

MR. STOOPS said that existing contracts would be affected by HB
309, and that dentists would have the option to opt out of the
non-covered service portions of the contracts, wthout a new
contract being reissued. He said that it could be an extended
period of tinme for contracts to be nodified, and for new
publications to be distributed.

DR. LOGAN, in response to M. Stoops, stated that this did
present a challenge for notification to the consuner, as the
contracts were constantly changi ng.

3:39:49 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked why this was not occurring with primry
care, as well.

MR, STOOPS offered his belief that it was the dental providers
who had introduced this |egislation.

DR. LOGAN, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that dentists
joined PPGCs, which offered care at a discount rate, to fill
ot herwi se unscheduled office tinme and to allow an opportunity
for customary service rates to procedures not included under the
i nsurance pl ans.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 25, 2010



3:42: 40 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER asked if HB 309 would affect current and future
contracts wth regard to information distribution to the
consunmer.

DENNI S BAILEY, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, said
that HB 309 would only apply to new contracts and that this
woul d be an ongoi ng process.

3:44: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for «clarification that providers
coul d opt out, without renewing the contract.

MR. BAILEY replied that this was not specified in the bill, but
woul d apply if it was in an existing contract.

3:45:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern for notification to the
insured that there would now be two types of PPO contracts. He
directed attention to Version C, page 2, line 15, and asked if
the |anguage could change to ensure that the insured would
understand the fees prior to the services.

MR. BAILEY replied that Version C was currently perm ssive. He

agreed that it was possible to describe the requested
information and state that it was mandatory to provide the
i nformati on. He opined that it nay already exist in insurance
statute.

3:47:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this could be changed with a
conceptual anendnent.

MR. BAILEY agreed that a conceptual anendnent for "may" to be
changed to "shall" and to include both the insurer and the
provi der was accept abl e.

3:49:11 PM
CHRI S HENRY, Treasurer, Al aska Dental Society, said that he had
been following the bill and that he was available to answer any
guesti ons.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 25, 2010



3:49:45 PM

JIM TOME, Executive Director, Al aska Dental Society, stated
that he was al so avail able to answer any questi ons.

3:50: 27 PM
CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.
3:50: 46 PM
REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON offered her belief that although both
the insurance industry and the dental providers had cone to
agreenent, HB 309 was not fair to the self insurers.
3:51:16 PM
CO CHAI R HERRON noved to adopt Amendnent 1, which read:
Page 1, Line 14
After (2)
| nsert "not™

REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON objected for discussion

M5. ELLIOIT explained that during the changes to the bill, this
was an oversi ght and the anmendnent would correct this.

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON renoved her objection
There being no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.
3:52:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 2, as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 15, followng (ii)
Del ete "may authorize"
I nsert "shall require both";
Foll owi ng "insurer”
Insert "and the dentist"
REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON obj ected for discussion

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON read the proposed |ine 15:

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 25, 2010



(i1i) shall require both the insurer and the dentist to
provide information to the insured describing the
dentist's choice of contract and fee schedul es;

3:53: 29 PM

M5. ELLIOTT, in response to Representative T. WIson, said that
the sponsor was neutral on Conceptual Amendnment 2 and would
defer to the will of the commttee.

3:53:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked to clarify if the costs would be
i ncr eased.

M5. ELLIOIT said that she did not know.

3:54:46 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER opened public testinony.

MS. ELLIOIT asked to clarify proposed Conceptual Amendnent 2.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON restated proposed Conceptual Amendnment 2,
as follows:

(1i) shall require both the insurer and the dentist to
provide information to the insured describing the
dentist's choice of contract and fee schedul es;

3:55:45 PM

DR. LOGAN, in response to Representative Holnmes, said that
Conceptual Anmendnent 2 woul d not increase dental rates.

3:56:28 PM

DR. LOGAN, in response to Representative T. WIson, offered his
belief that Conceptual Anendnent 2 would inform the insured
whet her the contract was for covered services only, or for
covered and non-covered services. He noted that the fee
schedul e for non covered services would al so be provided.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if the entire fee schedule would
need to be reveal ed.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 25, 2010



DR. LOGAN replied that the contract for the covered fee schedul e
was with the insurance conpany. He opined that the provider
woul d show the fees not included in the negotiated fee schedul e.

3:58:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he had only nodified the
| anguage from the dentists and the insured conmmunity. He stated
his intention to be for the insured person to know the cost for
servi ce.

3:59: 08 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

3:59:26 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON renoved her objection to Conceptua
Amendnent 2.

There being no further objection, Conceptual Anmendnment 2 was
adopt ed.

4:00: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON relayed that he was unconfortable wth
this as a procedure as it could raise costs for individuals. He
stated that he did not want to have this procedure expanded to
i ncl ude ot her nedical fields.

4:00: 50 PM

CO- CHAIR KELLER pointed out that new federal |egislation my
make sone changes to this bill.

4:01: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if dental service was covered under
the federal health care bill.

CHAI R KELLER said that he did not know.
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

4:02: 44 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 25, 2010



REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON noved to report CSHB 309, 26-LS1315\C,
Bai l ey, 3/24/10, as anmended, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

There being no objection, CSHB 309 (HSS) was forwarded from the
House Heal th and Soci al Services Standing Conmtt ee.

4:03:21 PM

HB 361- CPR TRAI NI NG FOR 911 DI SPATCHERS

4:03: 30 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 361, "An Act requiring 911 dispatchers to be
trained in cardiopulnonary resuscitation; and providing for an
effective date.™ [In front of the commttee was the proposed
comittee substitute (CS) for HB 361, 26- LS1478\ R,
Luckhaupt/M schel , 3/11/10.]

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, Staff to Representative Anna Fairclough,
Al aska State Legislature, explained that HB 361 was an act
requiring that 911 dispatchers be trained in cardiopul nonary
resuscitation (CPR). She offered her belief that this was an
i mportant step as Al aska was one of only 18 states which did not
mandat e this.

4:04:49 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON noved to adopt the proposed conmittee substitute
(CS) for HB 361, 26-LS1478\R, Luckhaupt/M schel, 3/11/10, as the
wor ki ng docunent . There being no objection, Version R was
before the commttee.

M5. KOENEMAN expl ained that the 911 coordinator was currently a
position within the Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs
(DWA), and it was suggested the coordinator position should be
noved to the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS).

4:06: 01 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if it would be necessary to have
a person certified in CPR in each bush Al aska comrunity.

4:06: 21 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 25, 2010



M5. KCENEMAN replied that nost nunicipalities had dispatchers
trained as energency nedical dispatchers, which included CPR
She acknow edged that bush dispatchers would be required to
receive CPR training and that CPR certification was avail able
onl i ne.

4:07:43 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON questioned the value of an online CPR
training and certification.

MS. KCENEMAN said that the 911 coordinator would facilitate and
nmonitor the CPR training.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked how many comunities needed the
CPR certification for its dispatchers.

M5. KCENEMAN said that it was difficult to get the exact
i nformation.

4:09:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reported that CPR no |onger included
ai rway breathing, and was now only "100 beats per mnute." He
asked if this CPR adaptation would affect the wording in the
proposed bill and that the bill mght be mandating sonething
that was no | onger recommended.

4:10:15 PM

M5. KOENEMAN noted that she was aware of the new chest punp
protocol and she suggested that DWA or DPS mght have nore
i nformation.

4:10:52 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if there was a fiscal note.

M5. KOENEMAN replied that a new fiscal note was forthcom ng from
DPS. She pointed out that the bill did have a referral to the
House Finance Committee.

4:11: 33 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER suggested forwarding the bill to the House
Fi nance Conmittee.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 25, 2010



4:12: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked about the pros and cons for noving the
911 coordi nator position within departnents.

4:12: 26 PM

M5. KOENEMAN replied that neither departnent had objected. She
opined that DWA had initially received federal funding for the
position. In response to Representative Lynn, she said the
deci si on cane through discussions with both the departnents.

4:13:40 PM

M CHAEL O HARE, Deput y Di rector, Di vi si on of Honel and
Securi ty/ Ener gency Managenent , Depar t ment of Mlitary &
Veterans’ Affairs (DWA), explained that the position had been
created at the end of 2004 for energency communi cations as DWA
had responsibility for energency comunications during a
catastrophic disaster. He explained that the day to day 911
system should belong in the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS),
and as defined in statute, it was not appropriate w thin DWA.

4:15:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if the position description in HB
361 was the sane as currently in DWA

MR. O HARE agreed. In response to Representative Seaton, he
said that CPR was still the current requirenent, but that upon
recertification, the protocol would be for chest punps.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his concern for the use of the
termCPR in statute, as it was no | onger recomended.

MR. O HARE offered his belief that the term CPR reflected a
current technique. He agreed that should the term be changed,
then the statute would al so have to change.

4:17:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reflected on a need to use the correct
termin statute.

CO- CHAIR KELLER agreed, and shared an anecdote about an

acquai ntance who had recently trained with the chest punp
techni que although the certification was still for CPR

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 25, 2010



4:18:23 PM

SUE STANCLI FF, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Public Safety, noted that there were two parts to
the bill: CPR and the departnental transfer of the 911
coordinator. She said that a poll to the statew de agenci es had
revealed that the mgjority required CPR, while many offered even
nore extensive training. She reported that DPS left the
determnation for CPR with the dispatch conmanders, but that HB
361 would now require CPR She offered her support for CPR and
addi tional training. Addressing the transfer of the 911
coordinator to DPS, she stated that as DPS did not currently
have this position, it would require hiring a position wthin
the Al aska State Troopers. She explained the additional duties
for this position. She reflected that a fiscal note would be
forthcom ng.

4:23:12 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked how many comunities did not
require CPR

M5. STANCLIFF replied that no communities were required to have
CPR certification. In response to Representative T. WIson, she
said that some communities, such as Anchorage and Fairbanks, had
a muni ci pal ordinance for CPR certification.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if this was a problem in sone
communities and she asked if the coordinator would need to
travel to the bush comunities. She questioned whether this
woul d be a burden to the rural conmunities.

M5. STANCLI FF said that six police chiefs had responded to a DPS
poll that they were already requiring CPR certification.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if Alaska State Troopers and
Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSO were required to have CPR
certification.

M5. STANCLIFF replied that this was part of the training.

4:25:57 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked why the 911 coordinator duties could not
be assigned to an existing position.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 25, 2010



M5. STANCLIFF replied that DPS would not accept a statutory
position without doing it correctly. She said that the search
and rescue coordination, the energency response, and the
energency calls in conjunction with DWA all required training
She opined that the 911 coordinator would not be limted to CPR
trai ni ng. She pointed out that the job description would be
based on the requirenents listed in the statute.

4:27:30 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON expressed concern for an additional position to
be created for the 911 coordi nator.

MS. STANCLIFF, in response, said that the DPS would not take the
job responsibility lightly.

CO CHAI R HERRON asked if there was lateral funding from DWA
4:29: 27 PM

MR. O HARE explained that, in 2004, this position was an
unfunded mandate whi ch DWA had since been attenpting to nove to
anot her departnent. He explained that the 911 coordinator
position was in conjunction with the Al aska Land Mbile Radio
system which had since been noved to Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DQOA). He explained that, although the statute
was with DWA, the coordination was with DOA and the Network
Security O ficer. He said that HB 361 would add nore
responsibility, which would require the position to be ful
tine.

4:31:44 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked for the <current coordi nator
duti es.

MR. O HARE explained that the 911 coordinator identified the
statewi de 911 dispatchers, and researched the technologies to
enhance 911 statewi de for approval by the legislature. The new
job description would include coordination of the statew de 911
di spatchers for other required responsibilities.

4:32:40 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked which comunities this would
impact and if this was a positive inpact.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 25, 2010



4:34:35 PM

RODNEY DI AL, Lieutenant, Al aska State Troopers, in response to
Representative T. WIlson, said that there were very few snall
di spatch centers, and that this would not affect any of them
He reported that it would have nore inpact on hub facilities in
bush communities, the mpjority of which were state trooper
facilities. He said that the Al aska State Troopers did require
CPR and it was also taught on a departnental l|evel as tine
permtted.

4:35:31 PM
REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON asked what comunity this would inpact.

LT. DIAL replied that he could not think of a community that
woul d be negatively i npacted. He opined that nost communities
were offering energency nedical dispatch training to the
di spat chers. He nmentioned that providing CPR instructions over
t he phone was different than perform ng CPR and he did not know
if there would be a phone certification. He opined that it may
be necessary for a CPR instructor certification, instead.

4:37:04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 2, line 5 which
stated that "a nunicipality shall require that energency
di spatchers on the 911 system be trained and currently
certified..." He asked if this applied to DPS.

LT. DIAL said that he had not yet received a response from the
Department of Law (DQL).

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the bill [anguage did not
mention instruction, and he asked Lt. Dial if the [|anguage
shoul d be anended to include instruction.

LT. DIAL replied that if dispatchers were only trained in basic
CPR, they may not be qualified to give CPR instruction over the
t el ephone. He referred to an earlier response by the Anerican
Heart Associ ati on.

4:39: 35 PM
M5. KCENEMAN, in response to Representative T. WIlson, clarified

that nunicipalities were not required, but had chosen to train
enmergency medi cal dispatchers. She recogni zed the concern for

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 25, 2010



CPR instruction over the phone versus the individual
certification for CPR  She noted that this would be worked out
with the DPS, the dispatchers, and the new 911 coordinator for
t he best direction.

4:41: 39 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

[ HB 361 was hel d over.]

HB 392- | NCENTI VES FOR CERTAI N MEDI CAL PROVI DERS

4:42:10 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the final order of business be
HOUSE BILL NO 392, "An Act establishing a |oan repaynent
program and enpl oynment incentive program for certain health care
professionals enployed in the state; and providing for an
effective date."

4:42: 28 PM

CO- CHAIR HERRON noved to adopt proposed conmittee substitute
(CS) for HB 392, 26-LS1528\S, M schel, 3/17/10 as the working
draft.

4:42: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ected for di scussion.

4:42: 57 PM

Nl KOOSH CARLO, Staff to Representative Bob Herron, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained that the change to Version S was on page
5 line 15, and it inserted "to not fewer than three
partici pants enployed in very hard-to-fill positions."

DR. CARLO expl ained that HB 392 created an incentive program and
| oan repaynent program within Departnent of Health and Soci al
Ser vi ces.

4:46:19 PM

DR. CARLO, in response to a questions about the earlier Version

E, explained that on page 5, line 12, "continuing participant”
had been inadvertently del eted.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- March 25, 2010



The commttee took an at-ease from4:46 p.m to 4:47 p. m
4:47:50 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked for a definition of "hard-to-
fill."

DR. CARLO replied that this definition would be worked out in
regul ati ons.

4: 48: 30 PM
CO- CHAI R KELLER asked for the determ nation of "hard-to-fill."

Dl ANE BARRANS, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion on
Post secondary Education (ACPE), replied that this would be
determ ned by Departnment of Health and Social Services.

4:49: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked about the duration for [|oan
repaynents to the Wshington, Womng, Al aska, Montana, and
| daho (WMM ) graduate nedical education program He comment ed
that HB 392 had a six year |oan repaynent program and he asked
if there were any other prograns of that duration.

4:49: 38 PM

M5. BARRANS replied that the two WMM repaynent terns were
three years for wunderserved areas and five years for wurban
ar eas. She said that it was inportant to distinguish the
fundamental structure of WM. She explained that the
agreenent was entered into when students entered the first year
of the graduate nedical program and the funds were paid
directly to the University of Wshington School of Medicine.
She pointed out that if a graduate did not return to Alaska to
practice, the service agreenment would convert into a loan wth
active repaynent. She said that there was not a simlar, active
program  She explained that there was a small teacher education
loan with a simlar structure to VWWAM. She pointed out that
this proposed program could be paid off after three years of
servi ce, depending on the anount of debt.

4:52:01 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 20- March 25, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned that if the proposed program
was for any student |oans, was it necessary to make direct
paynment to the | oan hol der, other than an Al askan state |oan, or
just make the paynent to the student.

4:53: 05 PM

M5. BARRANS said that this program had evolved over the years,
and that it was only recently that the direct incentive of cash
paynent was i ncl uded. She opined that the 1oan repaynent
| anguage could be vestigial and that sone groups believed the
student | oan paynent to be duplicative.

4:54: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the reference could just be to
the Al aska student | oan program

M5. BARRANS offered her belief that this would be a different
objective from the original program She explained that the
broad education loan eligibility was to allow recruitment from
out of state. She said that a change mght Ilimt the
partici pation.

4:55:22 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that this change would
make it easier admnistratively, and he did not see "any
downsi des. "

4:56: 05 PM

COCHAIR KELLER allowed that this wuld be the sponsor's
deci si on.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON offered her support and stated that the
doct or shortage was only going to worsen

4:56: 53 PM

COCHAIR HERRON, as the prinme sponsor of HB 392, expressed
agreenent with Representative Seaton

4:58: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that a conceptual anmendnent
woul d stream ine the bill.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -21- March 25, 2010



CO- CHAIR HERRON asked if the conceptual agreenent was for
anot her neans to adm ni ster the | oan program

4:59: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
whi ch he explained would only Iimt the |oan repaynent be used
for Alaska state issue loans, with the reminder of the sane
anount to now be paid by direct incentive.

5:00: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON objected for discussion. She expressed
concern that this would limt the participation

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES al so objected for discussion. She stated
her agreenment with the intent to sinplify the paperwrk and
| ower the admnistrative cost. She expressed concern with any
unf oreseen consequences by sonehow "skewing who is eligible to
recei ve the noney."

5:01: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that the intent was for repaynent
to Al aska state loans, with the cap to renmain the sane.

5:02: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON renoved her objection
REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES renoved her objection.
5:02: 24 PM

DR. CARLO enphasized that an applicant was eligible for the
program whet her or not they had any | oans.

5:02:40 PM
There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnment 1 was adopt ed.
REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES expressed her support for HB 392.

5:03: 29 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -22- March 25, 2010



CO CHAIR KELLER stated his disconfort with the necessity to
subsidize the salaries of these professionals, and he opined
that governnment rate regulation had renoved any incentives for
practice. He reiterated that the current federal health care
| egislation could make it necessary to re-visit this bill.

[ Version S was adopted as the working draft.]

5:05: 06 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON noved to report proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 392, 26-LS1528\S, M schel, 3/17/10, as
anended, out of commttee wth individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

392 (HSS) was forwarded from the House Health and Soci al
Services Standing Comm ttee.

5:05:49 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 5:05 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 23- March 25, 2010



